
Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 1 of 12 
 
  
 

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 2 

FEBRUARY 5, 2014 3 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 

4:00 p.m. 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 

Robert Wolfe, Mayor         9 
Lori Pfister, Vice Mayor 10 
Kirby Smith, Councilmember 11 
Robert Speaks, Councilmember 12 
Norman Hope, Councilmember  13 
 14 
STAFF PRESENT 15 
 16 
John Drury, City Administrator 17 
Robert Q. Williams, City Attorney 18 
Nancy Barnett, City Clerk 19 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 20 
Chris Thompson, Public Works Director 21 
Joyce Ross, Communications Director 22 
Bill Neron, Economic Development Director 23 
Lori Tucker, Human Resources Director 24 
Tammey Rogers, Community Services Director 25 
Richard Keith, Fire Department 26 
Stoney Lubins, Police Chief 27 
Brad Hayes, Utility Director 28 
 29 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 30 
 31 
Mayor Wolfe called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  32 
 33 
II. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 34 
 35 
Tom Cavanaugh, First Baptist Church of Mt. Dora, gave the invocation and those present recited 36 
the pledge of allegiance. 37 
 38 
lll. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 39 
 40 
Mayor Wolfe asked for any changes to the agenda. Mr. Drury requested to add under “Old 41 
Business”, Item A – Update on the Blue Rhino Investigation Report. 42 
 43 
MOTION 44 
 45 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Robert Speaks. The motion 46 
carried unanimously 5-0. 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 2 of 12 
 
  
 
 1 
Mayor Wolfe reminded those present that if anyone wished to speak on an item on the agenda 2 
that they should fill out the Request to Speak and bring to the City Clerk. 3 
 4 
lV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   5 
 6 
Tab 1) Approval of Minutes – January 15, 2014 7 
 8 
Norman Hope moved to approve the City Council Minutes of January 15, 2014, seconded 9 
by Robert Speaks. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 10 
 11 
V. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 12 
 13 
None. 14 
 15 
Vl. SWEARING IN BY CITY ATTORNEY AND DISCLOSURE OF EX PARTE CONTACTS 16 
 17 
Attorney Williams stated Tab 4, the rezoning on Fisherman’s Cove is quasi-judicial. He requested 18 
those who wished to speak to be sworn in and he gave the oath to those wishing to speak. He 19 
asked Council if anyone had any exparte communications to disclose on Fisherman’s Cove. 20 
There were none. 21 
 22 
Vll. READING OF ALL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 23 
 24 
Ms. Barnett read the following ordinance/resolution by title only: 25 

 26 
SECOND READING 27 

 28 
ORDINANCE 2013-21 29 

 30 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, REZONING 31 
APROXIMATELY 36 ACRES OF PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF 32 
NORTH EICHELBERGER ROAD, SOUTH OF LANE PARK ROAD AND 33 
NORTHWESTERLY OF STATE ROAD 19; FROM COUNTY RMRP AND C-1 TO 34 
CITY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; SUBJECT TO THE RULES, REGULATIONS AND 35 
OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAVARES COUNCIL; PROVIDING 36 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 37 

 38 
 39 

RESOLUTION 2014-02 40 
 41 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 2013 42 
FISCAL YEAR ADOPTED BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF TAVARES, 43 
REPRESENTING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED BUDGET, AND 44 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 45 
 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 3 of 12 
 
  
 
Vlll CONSENT AGENDA 1 
 2 
Mayor Wolfe asked if anyone in the audience opposed Tab 2 or 3 on the Consent Agenda. 3 
 4 
MOTION 5 
 6 
Robert Speaks moved to approve the Consent Agenda [Acceptance of State of Florida 7 
EMS Grant for Training Equipment and Approval of SRF Amendment 2 for Reclaimed 8 
Water Project], seconded by Norman Hope. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 9 
 10 
lX. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 11 
 12 
Tab 4) Ordinance #2013-21 – Fisherman’s Cove Rezoning – Second Reading 13 
 14 
Mr. Skutt stated this property is just off SR 19 west of Eichelberger Road. The property was 15 
annexed into the City in 2008. At that time city zoning was not placed on the property as the 16 
owner was considering various forms of resort uses and planned to come in at a later date with a 17 
specific Planned Development ordinance to reflect the development. The owner has now 18 
determined through market studies that redevelopment of the existing RV resort to a resort lodge, 19 
visitor cottages and apartments combined with assisted living, memory care and nursing facilities 20 
would be the best use of this property. The development would be a combination of commercial 21 
and residential uses and would be planned to be compatible and regulated through this Planned 22 
Development ordinance. The City’s Comprehensive Plan considers this use to be Mixed Use 23 
Commercial therefore a corresponding Future Land Use Map amendment is concurrently being 24 
considered and processed. 25 
 26 
The ordinance includes a concept/phasing plan and an architectural rendering. The developer will 27 
be required to submit an approved site plan demonstrating compliance with all applicable laws 28 
and regulations including connection to city utilities. The Planning and zoning Board voted to 29 
recommend approval unanimously and staff recommends approval. 30 
 31 
MOTION 32 
 33 
Kirby Smith moved to approve Ordinance #2013-21, seconded by Norman Hope. The 34 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 35 
 36 
Tab 5) Resolution #2014-02 – Rollovers to Fiscal Year 2014 Budget 37 
 38 
Ms. Houghton reported that this resolution is a cleanup resolution which encumbers any 39 
contracted items from the previous year to the new fiscal year. It also includes all budgetary 40 
transfers up to the end of January and one small appropriation for the library that was submitted 41 
by the Friends of the Library. This is the first amendment to the budget and staff will come back 42 
every quarter with any similar items. 43 
 44 
Councilmember Smith asked to have some additional items added to the agenda summary which 45 
he had discussed with Ms. Houghton. Ms. Houghton confirmed that she would be making those 46 
adjustments. 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 4 of 12 
 
  
 
MOTION 1 
 2 
Robert Speaks moved for approval of Resolution #2014-02, seconded by Lori Pfister. The 3 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 4 
 5 
X. GENERAL GOVERNMENT 6 
 7 
Tab 6) Authorization to Enter into Agreements with Catering Companies for the Pavilion 8 
 9 
Ms. Rogers advised that last fall the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was advertised for catering 10 
companies to service the Pavilion on the Lake project. Initially 10 companies attended the pre-bid 11 
with one who stated they were just present to gather information. Six replies to the bid were 12 
received. It was determined that two of the bids had not met minimum qualifications. Ms. Rogers 13 
reviewed the minimum requirements of proof of insurance, licenses, etc. She said the four 14 
qualified companies are as follows: 15 
 16 
Big City Catering - Orlando 17 
Puff ‘n Stuff Events - Orlando 18 
Arthur’s Creative Events & Catering – Altamonte Springs 19 
Events by John Michael - Orlando 20 
 21 
Ms. Rogers said the request being made is for approval to contact with these companies to serve 22 
the pavilion for the next five years. 23 
 24 
Councilmember Smith said he was disappointed that not more companies from Lake County 25 
applied however he understood the process. He said the contract itself says 36 months with one 26 
year extension for two years. Ms. Rogers said it would be three years locked in however if there 27 
was a problem with performance at any time the city has the right to terminate the contract. If the 28 
performance is acceptable, then the contract would be renewed twice for additional one year 29 
terms. 30 
 31 
Councilmember Smith asked when the city could go out for bids again and what is the total 32 
maximum number of catering companies the city could contract with for the pavilion. 33 
 34 
Discussion followed on numbers of vendors, and alternatives or possible revisions to the current 35 
RFQ. 36 
 37 
Councilmember Speaks questioned whether a new company moving into the area could apply 38 
sooner than the three years. Mr. Drury noted that currently any company that meets the 39 
requirements can be a caterer provided the $500 fee is paid. 40 
  41 
Ms. Rogers elaborated on the process adding that the four caterers assume they will be the 42 
officially approved caterers. 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 5 of 12 
 
  
 
Councilmember Smith asked how long the companies had to respond to the RFQ. Ms. Rogers 1 
said the process started in November and she believed there was a seven week response time. 2 
 3 
Councilmember Hope asked if the four caterers that qualified did this with the understanding that 4 
they would have exclusive rights to the catering in the pavilion for three years. Ms. Rogers 5 
confirmed. Mr. Drury reviewed the RFQ process and members of the RFQ team. He said it is 6 
important that the companies go through a vetting process for the protection of the city and the 7 
clients, and the decision to undergo this process was based on other similar facilities in the area. 8 
  9 
Councilmember Hope reiterated his question that these four companies are under the 10 
understanding that they will be the exclusive caters for a period of three to five years except for 11 
the option described of paying a $500 fee. He said if Council changes the terms it would have to  12 
go back to the companies with the understanding that another company may come in two years 13 
from now and be added to the list. Ms. Rogers confirmed and noted in addition the four 14 
companies will each be providing a $3000 check to the city that will remain in a secured account 15 
to ensure the city receives its revenues.  16 
 17 
Vice Mayor Pfister expressed concern about limiting the number of vendors. Discussion followed 18 
on how many catering companies the city had originally anticipated would be qualified and 19 
chosen as caterers. Ms. Rogers said the statement in the RFQ was probably “six to seven”. 20 
Councilmember Smith suggested following another process until the six caterers are achieved. 21 
 22 
Attorney Williams said the contract needs to be consistent with the language in the RFQ. He said 23 
the city is not guaranteeing a specific number of events for the caterers. He discussed the 24 
requirements, pricing and menus that the companies have committed to provide. He said if 25 
specifications are changed it would likely need to be re-bid. He said Council has the right to throw 26 
out the bids and do the process again. He noted if the RFQ did not indicate that the numbers 27 
would be capped, he believed the city could choose up to three more caterers. 28 
 29 
Mayor Wolfe said he believed the vendors had been given adequate time to respond. He said 30 
these companies went through the proper process, did their due diligence, and he did not believe 31 
it would be right to open the RFQ again before three years. Attorney Williams confirmed the 32 
contract is for three years. 33 
 34 
MOTION 35 
 36 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the four top vendors for a three year contract that is 37 
extendable for two additional years and the City will go back out for RFQ’s/RFP’s at the 38 
end of the third year. The motion was seconded by Norman Hope. The motion carried 3-2 39 
as follows: 40 
 41 
Robert Wolfe     Yes 42 
Kirby Smith     Yes 43 
Norman Hope    Yes 44 
Lori Pfister     No 45 
Robert Speaks    No 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 6 of 12 
 
  
 
Tab 7) Financing Plan and Engineering Contracts for Sunset View Water & Sewer Project 1 
 2 
Mr. Hayes presented the following report: 3 
 4 
The City has been working with the homeowners at Sunset View subdivision for approximately 5 
five (5) years on a project that will provide water and sewer services to the Sunset View homes 6 
and Three Lakes Mobile Home park to address their failing septic tank and poor drinking water 7 
situation which should also assist in improving water quality along the shore line that all of these 8 
homes are located on.  9 
 10 
Previously on May 1, 2013, City Council approved an engineering agreement with Wicks 11 
Engineering in the amount of $20,320 (excluded debt issuance costs) to design, engineer and 12 
permit the extension of water lines and sewer lines from the city’s utility’s system to this area, as 13 
well as engineering services to design a water and sewer system for the single family homes in 14 
the Sunset View area.  This design is approximately 97% complete and ready to go out to bid. 15 
Once the project goes out to bid and a contractor is selected it will be necessary to have an 16 
Engineer provide construction inspection services and construction contract administration 17 
services. Staff has negotiated a contract with Wicks Engineering in the amount of $16,000 to do 18 
the construction inspections and construction contract administration work (see attached 19 
Addendum # 1 contract). 20 
 21 
Financing Plan 22 
 23 
The city proposes to borrow the money for the Sunset View project and to assess the property 24 
owners their proportionate share of the cost to borrow plus 1% interest for a length of 10 years 25 
(see attached Sunset View/Tavares Three Lakes Park Financing Plan Summary). Additional 26 
details of this plan include the following:  27 
 28 
Estimated cost of this project and loan the city would take out is $591,316.90. 29 
26 connections at $22,742.96 each 30 
4.5% interest (3.5% market rate plus 1% city overhead cost) 31 
10 year payback no prepayment penalty 32 
Monthly payments from each connection for the construction utility assessment is $219.65 33 
$0 down from home owners or they can pay the full $22,742.96 up front.   34 
 35 
Home owners do pay a connection fee of $270 (cost of meter and its installation), cross 36 
connection device of $40 and utility deposit fee of $175 at such time as they connect. 37 
 38 
Prior to construction, 75% of the home owners in Sunset View and 100% of the homeowners in 39 
Three Lakes Mobile Home Park would be required to:  40 
 41 

 Execute a Utility Agreement agreeing to the monthly utility construction assessment 42 
 Execute a Utility Easement 43 
 Execute an annexation petition 44 
 Execute a Covenant to annex into the city within five years from completion of 45 

construction of the utility lines. 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 7 of 12 
 
  
 
The City Attorney has been coordinating the development and execution of these documents and 1 
the Mayor has been meeting with the leadership of both Sunset View and Three Lakes. In 2 
addition, there will be other documents to be prepared by the City Attorney that will be brought 3 
forward to City Council required by State Statute for the assessment process, to confirm 4 
construction costs and to prepare the assessment roll. 5 
 6 
By annexing into the City the residents will be provided with fire protection, police protection and 7 
sanitation services. They will be placed on the fire assessment roll and pay all city taxes and fees 8 
normally required by property owners. The city will not be committing to do any infrastructure 9 
upgrades to roads, storm water or other infrastructure other than to replace what is disturbed as a 10 
result of the utility installation work. The roads do not meet city standards.    11 
 12 
Recent Change of Events: 13 
 14 
Originally the city was going to require that all home owners make a down payment and pay off 15 
the note in five years. Staff is now recommending a 10 year pay-off and no down payment which 16 
would parallel the city’s debt structure, and therefore the city is essentially passing that on to the 17 
residents. Since this change, Three Lakes Mobile Home Park has shown interest in also being 18 
connected to the city’s water and sewer system.  19 
 20 
A major portion of the project cost is associated with extending utility service to this area. The 21 
cost to add Three Lakes Mobile Home Park to the project is an additional $223,620.60, bringing 22 
the project total to $820,937.50 and adding 36 connections for a total of 62 connections. Utilizing 23 
the same financing plan as proposed above would result in a reduction to the resident’s monthly 24 
payment from $227.18 down to $130.93 for ten (10) years.   25 
 26 
Staff has negotiated addendum #2 with Wicks Engineering add the Mobile Home Park 27 
connections to the water and sewer system design as well as handling all of the construction 28 
inspections and contract administration for a fee of $6,000.  29 
 30 
It should be noted that the project may be bid out utilizing a bid alternate format wherein the base 31 
bid would be to construct utility service to and throughout Sunset View and the bid alternate 32 
would be to add a cost to construction for utility service through Three Lakes. If three Lakes votes 33 
to hook up and executes the necessary documents prior to biding then the bid alternate would not 34 
be necessary.   35 
 36 
Mr. Drury noted that Council has been provided a letter from the Three Lakes Homeowners 37 
Association stating that they did take a vote and have voted to be part of the assessment. 38 
Therefore the City will not be doing a bid alternate on this project. 39 
 40 
Mayor Wolfe noted he has met with Three Lakes and they have indicated that they understand 41 
the proposed project. He said there is one individual who wishes to speak on this issue. 42 
 43 
Attorney Williams advised that what was being considered for approval at this meeting is the 44 
financing plan, the engineering contracts and the concept of going forward. He said Mr. Hayes 45 
and his staff have been working on this project for several years and he as well began looking at 46 
the concept 15 years ago. He said the city has advanced some funds already in a good faith 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 8 of 12 
 
  
 
effort for engineering however the homeowners are not required at this point to join in or pay 1 
anything. He said ultimately the proposal is to do an assessment which is pursuant to Chapter 2 
170 of the Florida Statutes where they will pay back the cost of this project. That process is a 3 
statutory recipe process that will require a number of resolutions in the future. There is no 4 
assessment being made at this meeting on anyone’s property. This is a request to go forward 5 
with the assessment process; ultimately the price that gets assessed is the final price of the 6 
project versus the estimate numbers that are being utilized now. 7 
 8 
Councilmember Smith asked Ms. Houghton how the funds affect the city upfront towards its 9 
borrowing power or other expenditures in the future, while the citizens are repaying the 10 
assessment. 11 
 12 
Ms. Houghton said this particular debt will be supported by repayment from the revenue. The city 13 
will issue the debt, pay the debt service, and will collect from the residents to offset that cost. The 14 
city is currently going through a rate study that is reviewing all projects and the future of the city’s 15 
rates in comparison to current and future projects. Mr. Drury said this will not be a general 16 
obligation bond issue backed up by the taxpayers, therefore limiting the General Fund borrowing 17 
capacity. This will be a revenue bond issue backed up by the revenues pledged through the 18 
assessment.  19 
 20 
Councilmember Smith asked if utility reserve monies could be used to pay back the reserves. Ms. 21 
Houghton answered in the affirmative. 22 
 23 
Mayor Wolfe invited Mr. Wright to speak (representing himself). 24 
 25 
Robert Wright, 12122 Canal Street 26 
 27 
Mr. Wright stated that this property was previously owned by his father who had a residence there 28 
since 1982 and also owned the house on 12105 Canal Street. He said that house was sold to 29 
Jack and Betty Squire. His father passed last December. 30 
 31 
Mr. Wright said everything is up to scale on his property as far as the well and septic tank. He 32 
said he and four others are opposed to the project. 33 
 34 
Mayor Wolfe stated there are a certain number of residents on Sunset View that want to do the 35 
water and sewer project. He said he did not believe that if Mr. Wright and the others do not 36 
choose to participate, the City would not be forcing them to participate. 37 
 38 
Mr. Wright said he had been informed that he would have to join sooner or later.  39 
 40 
Mr. Drury stated there will be a process for assessment and for annexation. He said the issue 41 
before Council today is to start the process of setting up an assessment and annexation that does 42 
not include Mr. Wright’s property. 43 
 44 
Mr. Wright said he was told by Mr. Wicks that the plans have been drawn up and he will have to 45 
be part of the project because of the way it has been engineered. 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 9 of 12 
 
  
 
Mr. Drury reiterated the process that was being followed and noted that if Mr. Wright does not 1 
want to be annexed in and does not want to pay the assessment or hook up to the water and 2 
sewer line, that would be his choice. Attorney Williams confirmed. 3 
 4 
Mr. Wright said Mr. Drury was saying the city would not run the water and sewer lines past his 5 
property. Mr. Drury said he had not said that. 6 
 7 
Attorney Williams responded that the city will be running the lines in public rights of way which 8 
probably will go by Mr. Wright’s property. Mr. Wright said the lines do not need to go by his 9 
property because he is one of the last properties on the street. 10 
 11 
Ted Wicks, city engineer, advised that based on where Mr. Wright lives there are customers on 12 
the other side of the road and potential customers to the west that will require that the lines be in 13 
placed in that location of the right of way in order to service the area.  14 
 15 
Councilmember Smith asked Mr. Wicks if he had designed any of his utility lines to be on private 16 
property. Mr. Wicks said not at this point. 17 
 18 
Mr. Wright said all the other property being discussed is owned by a person [pointing to someone 19 
in the audience] who he said has no intention of building anything. He said he believed the only 20 
thing that the service could possibly go to is the boat club down on the river which is owned by 21 
the County. He said the problem is that if the lines go by his house, that in the future if he needs 22 
someone to work on the septic tank, they would by  law be required to hook up to the septic 23 
system and the water line. He said he had spoken to the County for confirmation. He said it would 24 
require $25,000 to hook up to the line which is why he does not want the line to go by his 25 
property. 26 
 27 
Mr. Drury commented that the person Mr. Wright was pointing to needed to confirm. 28 
  29 
Attorney Williams said the City does not have a law that requires people outside the city limits to 30 
connect to water and sewer. He said if the property is within the city limits and there is a line, the 31 
city’s code requires connection if it is available. He said there may be state, federal, or local laws 32 
that require people outside of the City of Tavares to connect to sewer, for various environmental 33 
reasons. He said it will not be enforced by the City. He said he did not believe there is currently a 34 
requirement for any existing serviceable septic tanks to be discontinued or connect on; only when 35 
there is a problem. He said he thought this would be a significant benefit not a detriment to Mr. 36 
Wright. 37 
 38 
Mr. Drury said the city could do a bid alternate. Attorney Williams said he believes the hydraulics 39 
of the system should continue to mandate. He said he did not think it would matter if the line 40 
stops short of Mr. Wright’s house; the County might still require him to connect if it was within 200 41 
feet. 42 
 43 
MOTION 44 
 45 
Norman Hope moved to approve Option #1 [approval of proposed financing plan and two 46 
engineering contracts with Wicks Engineering in the amount of $16,000 for Addendum #1 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 10 of 12 
 
  
 
and $6,000 for Addendum #2], seconded by Kirby Smith. The motion carried unanimously 1 
5-0. 2 
 3 
Tab 8) Budget Amendment for Sanitation Truck Wraps 4 
 5 
Ms. Houghton asked Mr. Thompson to provide the overview on the project. 6 
 7 
Mr. Thompson reviewed the franchise agreement with Waste Management that included $25,000 8 
to be used for event support in the way of portalets and wash stations. This last year there was a 9 
surplus of $8,925. The city had negotiated that any surplus funds would be returned to the City. 10 
Waste Management has written a letter authoring the city to use the funds for the purpose of the 11 
truck wraps. He reviewed the various options for Council consideration. He stated the truck wraps 12 
will promote the city’s branding. 13 
  14 
Councilmember Smith asked if the funds could be given back to the businesses to reduce their 15 
rates. Mr. Thompson said it would be a 1% or less reduction.  16 
 17 
Councilmember Speaks suggested other alternatives to a wrap such as getting the Tavares High 18 
School Art Department involved with designing an artwork. 19 
  20 
Councilmember Smith asked if Mr. Thompson would be needing funds for replacement 21 
equipment next year. Mayor Wolfe spoke in support of the marketing aspect of this suggestion as 22 
he has spoken to many people over the years who were not aware of events. Councilmember 23 
Hope spoke in support.  24 
 25 
Mr. Drury said the top banner will have a magnetic sign that will refer to a weekly event. The 26 
bottom banner will have a piece that addresses recycling, etc. He said he thought it was a 27 
creative idea. 28 
 29 
Vice Mayor Pfister asked for clarification of the cost of the banners. Mr. Thompson said there are 30 
sufficient funds to buy the four banners; staff is still obtaining exact costs on the wraps. Mr. Drury 31 
said he would support approaching some of the event promoters to assist with budgeting for 32 
additional banners. 33 
 34 
MOTION 35 
 36 
Norman Hope moved to approve Option #1 [Approval of budget amendment to appropriate 37 
the $8,925.00 returned to the city from Waste Management for wrapping four Solid Waste 38 
Division garbage trucks as described in the agenda summary], seconded by Robert 39 
Speaks. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 40 
 41 
Xl. OLD BUSINESS 42 
 43 

A. Update on Blue Rhino 44 
 45 
Mr. Drury reported that the State Fire Marshall’s report came out today which he has emailed to 46 
Council. He said the take away from the report is that it appears that employees were bleeding 47 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 11 of 12 
 
  
 
some tanks outside in the yard and someone started up a forklift. He said he believed the case 1 
was being closed, there was no criminal intent, and it was considered to be an accident. He said 2 
the hope is that the regulatory agencies and the OSHA standards study will determine any 3 
improvements that need to be made. He said the State Fire Marshall was present to answer any 4 
questions in addition to the Fire Chief. 5 
 6 
Xll. NEW BUSINESS 7 
 8 
Xlll. AUDIENCE TO BE HEARD   9 
 10 
Mayor Wolfe asked for public comment for anything not on the agenda. 11 
 12 
XlV. REPORTS 13 
 14 
Tab 14) City Administrator 15 
 16 
Mr. Drury referred to his list of meetings and events coming up. Councilmember Speaks asked for 17 
the date on the League of Cities luncheon. Ms. Barnett apologized for the clerical error, stating 18 
the luncheon is the second Friday and she would email Council with the exact date. 19 
 20 
City Clerk 21 
 22 
Human Resources 23 
 24 
Economic Development 25 
 26 
Public Works 27 
 28 
Mr. Thompson said the Covanta contract has been signed to be effective July 1, 2014. 29 
 30 
Utility Department 31 
 32 
Police Department 33 
 34 
Community Services 35 
 36 
Fire Department 37 
 38 
Community Development 39 
 40 
Ms. Rogers said this Friday night at 6 pm at the Civic Center is the Father-Daughter Dance. 41 
 42 
She said the city has received 90 applications for the Pavilion Manager. 43 
 44 
Finance Department 45 
 46 



Regular Council Meeting – February 5, 2014 
Page 12 of 12 
 
  
 
Ms. Houghton stated Ms. Rogers had recently taken the BB&T bank (who did the loan) on a hard 1 
hat tour of the pavilion which was appreciated. 2 
  3 
City Attorney 4 
 5 
Attorney Williams spoke in support of Mr. Thompson’s branding initiative, noting many of the 6 
surrounding communities are following suit in branding initiatives now. 7 
 8 
Tab 15) City Council 9 
 10 
Vice Mayor Pfister 11 
 12 
Councilmember Hope 13 
 14 
Councilmember Hope complimented Mr. Thompson for his idea on branding with the garbage 15 
truck. He added Ms. Rogers has done a lot of work on the catering project and he just wanted to 16 
be sure the city treats the vendors fairly. 17 
 18 
Councilmember Speaks 19 
 20 
Councilmember Speaks said he was trying to think of ways to involve the community, similar to 21 
previous years when the elementary students were involved with designing a billboard [Fire 22 
Safety Week]. 23 
  24 
Councilmember Smith 25 
 26 
Mayor Wolfe 27 
 28 
Adjournment 29 
 30 
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 5:31 p.m. 31 
 32 
Respectfully submitted, 33 
 34 
 35 
Nancy A. Barnett, C.M.C. 36 
City Clerk 37 


